
 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 
Chief Executive 

Phil Drury 
MCIAT, ACIOB 

 
Municipal Buildings 
Boston 
Lincolnshire   PE21 8QR 
Tel: 01205 314200 
Fax: 01205 364604 

 

 

 

25 February 2019 
 
TO MEMBERS OF THE ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE  

OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 
Dear Councillor 
 

You are invited to attend a meeting of the  
Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee on 

Tuesday, 5th March, 2019 at 6.30 pm 
in the Municipal Buildings, West Street, Boston, PE21 8QR 

 
PHIL DRURY 
Chief Executive 
 
Membership: 
  

Chairman: Councillor Judith Skinner 
Vice Chairman: Councillor Yvonne Stevens 
 Councillors Tom Ashton, Peter Bedford, Colin Brotherton, 

Jonathan Noble, Barrie Pierpoint, Sue Ransome, Stephen Raven, 
Brian Rush and Stephen Woodliffe 
 

 
 

A G E N D A 
 
PART 1 - PRELIMINARIES 
 

A.   APOLOGIES  
 

 To receive apologies for absence. 
 

B.   MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To sign and confirm the  minutes of the previous meeting. 
 

Public Document Pack



 
 

C.   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS  
 

 To receive declarations of interests in respect of any item on the agenda. 
 

D.   PUBLIC QUESTIONS  
 

 To answer any written questions received from members of the public no later than 
5 p.m. two clear working days prior to the meeting – for this meeting the deadline 
is 5 p.m. on Thursday 28th February 2019. 
 

 
PART II - AGENDA ITEMS 
 

1   THE PILGRIMS 2020 AND ALLIED OPPORTUNITIES (UPDATE) (Pages 7 - 22) 
 

 (A report by Phil Perry, Head of Place and Space) 
 
Portfolio Holder: Councillor Claire Rylott  
 

2   WORK PROGRAMME (Pages 23 - 24) 
 

 (For Members to note/discuss the Committee’s current work programme) 
 

 
 

This meeting may be subject to being recorded 
 
 
Notes: 
 
The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is Karen Rist, 
Democratic Services Officer, Municipal Buildings, Boston, Telephone Number 01205 
314226.    email:  karen.rist@boston.gov.uk  
 
Council Members who are not able to attend the meeting should notify as soon as possible 
giving the name of the Council Member (if any) who will be attending the meeting as their 
substitute. 
 
Alternative Versions 
Should you wish to have the agenda or report in an alternative format such as larger text, 
Braille or a specific language, please contact Democratic Services on direct dial (01205) 
314226 
 
 

Emergency Procedures 
In the event of a fire alarm sounding all attendees are asked to leave the building 

via the nearest emergency exit and make their way to the Fire Assembly Point 
located in the car park at the rear of the Municipal Buildings. 

 



OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY - ENVIRONMENT & 
PERFORMANCE COMMITTEE 
 

8 January 2019 

Present: Councillor Judith Skinner (Chairman), Councillor Yvonne Stevens (Vice-
Chairman), Councillors Tom Ashton, Peter Bedford, Colin Brotherton, Anton Dani, 
Jonathan Noble, Barrie Pierpoint, Stephen Raven and Stephen Woodliffe 
 
In attendance:  
 

Portfolio Holder:   Councillor Michael Cooper. 
 

Officers  
Head of Environmental Operations, Economic Development Manager and Democratic 
Services Officer 

 
112   APOLOGIES 

 

Apologies for absence were tabled for Councillors Colin Brotherton and Sue Ransome. 

 
113   MINUTES 

 

With the agreement of the committee the Chairman signed the minutes of the previous 
meeting held on the 8 November 2018 

 
114   DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 

No declarations of interest were tabled. 

 
115   PUBLIC QUESTIONS 

 

No public questions were tabled. 

 
116   ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT POSITION STATEMENT 

 
The Economic Development Manager presented the report tabled in conjunction with a 
supporting visual presentation and began by advising that the activity noted within the 
report was defined through the economic development annual rolling action plan:  it set 
out a framework for continued support and would both support and enable the local 
business community to grow, develop and invest whilst nurturing entrepreneurship.  The 
plan would remain responsive and to ensure it remained appropriate and fit for purpose, 
taking into account changes in economic conditions, the plan would be subject to annual 
review. 
 
Committee were advised that the plan had a clear vision which was ‘to create a strong, 
successful and resilient economy that worked for all by positioning the borough as a 
destination of choice for not only investing in, but for working in, living in and also for 
visiting.  The Council was challenging perception and unlocking the potential of Boston 
via positive messages and positive marketing to attract even further economic 
investment. 
 
 

Page 1

Agenda Item B.



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 January 2019 
 

 
 
The plan had four key objectives: 
 

1. To promote and support inward investment into the borough 
2. To support business development and growth of new and existing business. 
3. To support housing growth and infrastructure development 
4. To develop tourism, heritage and cultural opportunities. 

 
All four objectives were closely aligned to the strategic Prosperity Priority set out in the 
Council Plan 2016/17 – 2019/20 to deliver a clear sense of direction and overall ‘open 
for business’ vision for the borough. 
 
Taking the plan forward through a partnership approach provided a leadership role in 
promoting economic development throughout the borough, addressing skills needs for 
local employers.  A significant amount of intervention had already been delivered to 
underpin growth by various Council services including Building Control, Licensing, 
Forward Plans and Housing.  With the council working as one the borough had seen 
significant economic growth over the previous two years resulting in business 
investment of in excess of £60million which did not include housing investment:  a 
further £20million worth of investment had been leveraged through the commercial 
elements of the Quadrant development; Kirton Distribution Park, Sutterton roundabout 
and other areas within the borough.  Further collaborative working with both public 
sector and private sector partners was helping to deliver economic development, 
infrastructure, skills along with housing and transport to develop not only tourism, but to 
promote and support heritage and cultural opportunities. A project was underway to turn 
Boston into an “EV charging town” which would attract visitors to a vehicle charging 
stop-off location 
 
The investment had resulted in jobs growth in excess of 200 which continued to grow, 
clearly demonstrating the Council’s GVA over the last two years which stood at 
£1.4billion. 
 
Over the last two years the Council had listened and taken temperature checks of issues 
relating to business growth, in particular around the Science, Technology, Engineering 
and Maths (STEM) skills agenda.  It had been identified that both skills shortages and 
attainment levels were by far the biggest areas of concern moving forward. 
 
As such the Council was now working collaboratively across the business sector and 
education system, at all levels, and was delivering an initiative called ‘Primary Engineer’ 
which would further create economic stability by them investing  in young people. 
 
As the name indicated the initiative, which had been launched in September 2018, had 
been aimed at primary school children but did cover secondary early years and the 
project was a unique piece of work aimed at encouraging young people to take up a 
career in engineering.  It had gained recognition from nationally important businesses 
including Network Rail, Engineering UK, National Grid and Anglian Water, alongside 
participating businesses including RAF Coningsby; Metsawood Boston, Masterbroek 
and Ackerman Aviation and Marine.    Boston Borough Council had contributed £40,000 
funding towards the initial two year engineering education project.   
 

Page 2



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 January 2019 

 

 
 
The money was to help provide both trained teachers for the three tier school stages 
along with the requisite tools in order to deliver curriculum-linked engineering projects.  
Members were advised that that long term aim was the establishment of strong 
education and engineering industry links through partnering schools and pupils with 
engineers in the classroom. 
 
The council had demonstrated their role in ‘place shaping’ having used its influence, 
resources and powers through the emerging South East Lincolnshire Local Plan 
enabling development of the borough as a location of choice. 
 
Referencing the visual presentation and the economic profile therein, members were 
asked to recognise that on ‘business by employee size’, whilst the borough had an 
obvious over-riding number of businesses with up to four employees, it did have 15 
business with in excess of 250 employees which was impressive for the size of the 
borough.  Whilst agriculture was the main industry of the borough, retail, manufacturing 
and processing were the biggest employers.  However, earnings for the borough were 
well below the national and even regional averages.  Furthermore the borough was 
lacking in professional, technical and educational opportunities. 
 
Committee were advised that the latest figures issued proved that Boston was actually 
bucking the trend with both new businesses and job opportunities with 300 business 
‘births’ and 225 business ‘deaths’, resulting in Boston being one of the county’s most 
successful areas for business.   When comparing figures alongside the other authorities 
within the county, only Boston and North Kesteven had increased their new business 
start-ups from 2015 to 2016.  

 
Committee commenting and questioning followed which included: 
 
Congratulating the officer on what he felt was a heart-warming, impressive and creative 
presentation a member stated that he felt reassured by the achievements and hoped 
that the Council itself would be recognised for them and the efforts of all parties involved 
should be acknowledged.   
Asking for information in respect of the progression of the new football ground and lack 
of information for supporters, the member was advised that officers were in constant 
dialogue with Chestnut Homes in respect of the football stadium.  One of the criteria for 
Costa to begin its development had been for the ground works to begin on the stadium 
and they were in the process of delivering that.  Committee were advised that the 
developer was looking wider for further funding to help support the stadium but the 
understanding was they were looking to develop this year.  They had concerns on 
existing residents and needed to move on quite quickly.  The Economic Development 
Manager recognised comments made that residents in the town had doubts about it 
being delivered and agreed that ongoing update information was required. 
Responding to the members request that the presentation be used as a tool to 
encourage businesses, the Economic Development Manager confirmed he did work 
very closely alongside all businesses on a face to face basis, with regular liaison 
alongside both the Chief Executive and Leader of the Council.  
 
 

Page 3



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 January 2019 
 

 
 
Work was also ongoing with colleagues around the County along with the Department of 
International Investment and members were asked to feel reassured that Boston was 
actively promoted as much as possible. 
The member responded by saying that he felt, as indeed did many of the people in 
Boston, that all economic development appeared to be focused at Lincoln who were 
promoted significantly more than Boston which was wrong.   
 
Referencing the Gross Value Added a member sought clarification of how it was 
measured and what the current criteria was to inform it.  The Economic Development 
Manager confirmed that figures were taken from the Office of National Statistics who 
collated the information we produced from a number of sources included VAT returns 
and accounts.  They offered two methods:  one was Gross Value Added which was 
more parochial accountability and then there was Gross Domestic Product which was 
more regionally based.  
Noting high street money being made available from central government budget the 
member asked how much money was available within the scheme and was advised that 
the overall national budget was £675m.  They were looking to support anywhere up to 
40 town centres nationally in round 1, probably between £5/10m for High Street funding.   
As part of that pot £55m is available for heritage projects, along with 2 further schemes 
due out early 2020.   The funding was not available for anything that the commercial 
market would build and was looking at other options to make the high street more viable, 
creating a vitality within the High Street.  Officers had already met with the town team, 
Heritage Lincolnshire and as a creative approach also met with the police. 
Referencing back to the earlier comments in respect of Chestnut Homes the member 
commented that as they had been in receipt of several million pounds of additional 
monies due to problems encountered in developing the site, he wondered how receptive 
would central Government be to further requests for monies.  The Economic 
Development Manager stated that part of the monies for the stadium had already been 
assigned so it was not a matter of additional monies:  house building was expensive and 
developers everywhere looked to the Government to support their growth.  It was 
believed that the stadium would go forward with existing monies. 
 
A member stated there was a huge connectivity issue in respect of rail connections 
between Boston and London with the early morning schedule offering only one option to 
get travellers into London for 8.15 (the following option arriving 1030).  It was a 
fundamental problem for the town which a slight change in scheduling would provide 
improved connections.    Furthermore the member stated that the quality of how 
attractive the area was, should be used to encourage businesses and grow the borough.  
The Grammar school was a great draw; Boston was 15 miles from the Lincolnshire 
Wolds which was an area of outstanding beauty and road connectivity to the south was 
good.    
In response the Economic Development Manager confirmed the authority was not 
engaged in the franchising network.  However, they were fully engaged with Network 
Rail in the schools initiatives and working alongside Primary Engineer.  The authority 
would endeavour to broaden its relationship with Network Rail to find ways to work with 
franchisees and the franchise owners to look at both ends of the daily schedules to allow 
not only earlier departures but also later arrivals back in Boston.  
 
 

Page 4



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 January 2019 

 

 
 
In respect of Boston as a lifestyle choice members were assured the promotion of the 
borough included all points the member had stated together with having an outstanding 
performing college; a general hospital – some outstanding primary schools and also the 
landscape to compliment the offer.  It was prevalent that when people came to Boston 
they commented that they had no idea just how nice the area was. 
 
Stating he felt the lack of skills must be one of the key problems potential companies 
would reference, a member asked what other issues and concerns were raised in 
business.  He asked if some of the colleges who were training people up had the 
intention to move them out of the area or if they were trying keep people in the Borough.   
The Economic Development Manager stated that the Primary Engineer had been to 
focus peoples’ minds on the businesses within the borough.  Referencing the key 
problems alongside the skills shortage he stated there were two issues:  transport 
infrastructure in getting from A to B and broadband connectivity and sometimes utilities 
including Anglian Water and Western Power.  Internet and Broadband was a big issue in 
the more rural areas. 
 
A member questioned the opportunities for funding for growth and investment and 
referencing the £3m from the LEP to support housing growth and the £4m for business 
growth asked if the funding was currently available. The LEP is the main conduit for 
Government support by the way of either National or European funding programmes.  
Quite a lot of the funding programmes were winding down in readiness of the new UK 
Shared Prosperity Fund post Brexit.  The member referenced the Businesses 
Ambassador programme and sought clarity on what it would be and was advised that 
the network would be a small group of industry leads who have local, national and 
regional presence who would basically go out and promote the borough.  The idea going 
forward would be to set future action plans around business needs. The last two years 
work had been spent in engaging with businesses to find out what their issues and 
opportunities were to allow us to produce an action plan that worked and not just a wish 
list.    The member further asked for details of who would be involved in the stakeholder 
group to encourage planning development partnerships and was advised it would be 
agents, inward investors and developers in a forum environment. 
 
Referring to the shop in town which was previously the old Clarks Shoe Shop a member 
asked what was happening to it now it had been renovated. The Economic Development 
Manager advised that Hot Millions who were the potential lease holder at the time had 
not been prepared to sign a lease until the work had been completed.  They had now 
signed the lease however they were not moving forward at this time ‘for let’.  Their 
intentions were not known at the time as to what would happen but what could be 
confirmed was a shutter would be put around the doorway within two days.  The 
member further asked out of the £60m investment how much had actually come through 
funding and was advised that whilst there was no breakdown, there was information 
coming through from each business.  Fold Hill Foods was one known but many of the 
others were thought banks or institutions.     
The member further stated that he had been advised that the lock widening gates had 
been abandoned by both the Environment Agency and the Port due to the overspend of 
the barrier and the Economic Development Manager said as far as he was aware it was 
still scheduled to take place. 
 

Page 5



Overview & Scrutiny - Environment & Performance Committee 
8 January 2019 
 

 
 
The Economic Development Manager was asked if he could remind Annyalla Chicks of 
their invitation to the parish council to visit their site, following their opening. 
  
It is recorded that Committee members all agreed the professionalism of the reporting 
and quality of content therein.  There was agreement it was a success story which 
needed to be projected across all streams of the media with ongoing increased activity 
in marketing and PR.  There was overall support of the ongoing activity to improve 
promotion of the borough and of working with the students in encouraging a greater 
skills base for local employers 
 
 
117   WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Committee Lead Officer confirmed that looking forward for the civic year, there were 
two more meetings scheduled.  The 5th March meeting had one potential paper on 
waste recycling but that would be dependent on the outcome of the enquiry day.  The 
meeting on the 16th April would have a report tabled by The Head of Place and Space 
on Pilgrim 2020 but there could be movement on that report.   
Members were advised that the Policy for ‘A’ Boards was still on the schedule but 
pending confirmation from the County as to when it would be tabled. 
 
 
 
 
 

The Meeting Closed at 8.45 pm 
 

Page 6



 
 
 
 

 

 

REPORT TO: ENVIRONMENT & PERFORMANCE CTTEE 

DATE: 5TH MARCH 2019 

SUBJECT: THE PILGRIMS 2020 & ALLIED OPPORTUNITIES 
(UPDATE) 

PORTFOLIO HOLDER: CLLR CLAIRE RYLOTT – TOURISM, ARTS, CULTURE & 
HERITAGE 

REPORT AUTHOR: HEAD OF SPACE AND PLACE 

EXEMPT REPORT? NO 

 

SUMMARY 
 
This report is an update on the Local level activity in regards the 2020 Pilgrims 
anniversary initiatives and also includes updates on National and Regional activities. 
 
A report was presented to the Environment & Performance Committee at its 10  
January 2018 meeting where members debated and commented on the prospective 
programme.  In conclusion, the Chairman agreed that it was a programme which 
needed to be supported and promoted as much as possible and that the committee 
would welcome follow up reporting on the various projects to monitor outcomes of the 
funding applications. 
 
A further report was presented to Cabinet on 21st February 2018 detailing project and 
programme ambitions alongside a request to support specific elements of funding to 
enable the projects to be progressed. The report and requests for funding were 
approved at that meeting and it was recognised that the suggested programme 
fulfilled the Corporate Objectives of:  
 

1. Prosperity – Attracting people and businesses to the area by raising the profile 
of Boston supporting the promotion of inward investment and developing our 
tourism, heritage and cultural opportunities. 

2. People – supporting our role in meeting wider health &wellbeing needs of our 
community by continuing to work closely with our partners, & 

3. Place – supporting Boston as a place which offers a quality way of life for 
residents. 

 

 

B   O   S   T   O   N 
  B O R O U G H  C O U N C I L  

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 1



RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
1. That the Environment & Performance Committee notes the progress of the 

various projects as detailed within the report. 

 

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The aim of the projects detailed within the report is to directly enhance and build on 
the placemaking and placebranding of Boston. 
 
The management and presentation of the town’s identity and improvement of its 
public realm enhances its character and helps communicate its strengths, which will 
reinforce the placebranding of Boston and help shape the regeneration of the town. 
The projects are intended to help increase the discovery and engagement with the 
historic offer and wider retail & business environment and compliment other initiatives 
improving Boston as a visitor destination such as the Heritage Lottery Fund (HLF) 
funded Townscape Heritage project and the Historic England Shop front scheme.  
 
The projects, activities and events will enable Boston to demonstrate its key part in 
this story and benefit from developing and sharing its wider offer through its 
promotion on a national and international level. 
 

 

 
ALTERNATIVES CONSIDERED 
 
None 
 

 
 

1. BACKGROUND 
 

1.1 This report is an update on the Local level activity as regards the 2020 Pilgrim 
anniversary and the Mayflower 400 National level activity of the Mayflower 
400 group, led by Plymouth City Council. Additionally a consortium of local 
authorities from Lincolnshire, Nottinghamshire and South Yorkshire working 
towards developing and promoting the ‘Pilgrims Roots’, which represents the 
areas where the Separatists, later to be known as the Pilgrims originated from 
and who travelled to Boston to escape religious persecution. 
 

1.2  A report was presented on proposed activity to the Environment and 
Performance Committee in regards the proposed activities and requests for 
funding on 10th of January 2018. A further was presented to Cabinet on 21st 
February 2018 detailing project and programme ambitions alongside a 
request to support specific elements of funding to enable the projects to be 
progressed. The report and requests for funding were approved at that 
meeting and a summary of monies committed to support at this time are 
appended to this report. (Appendix 1) 

Page 8



 
1.3 Nationally, in May 2016, Plymouth secured a £500K grant from Visit England 

to promote the national Mayflower Pilgrims story overseas, and during 2018 

the Department for Culture, Media and Sport agreed a similar amount to 

continue this activity into 2019.  

 We have directly benefitted from many national and international coach 

group travel operators being brought top Boston many of which have built 

itineraries that include Boston for 2020. 

 Travel journalists and bloggers have also been brought to Boston as part 

of the initiative and produced positive copy recognising the towns strong 

historic offer as a destination. 

 Boston is being promoted as a destination to world travel fairs by the 

Mayflower project which has developed a visitor offer ‘prospectus’, which 

promotes those destinations involved in the story, and Boston features well 

in the both narrative and visually throughout.  

 Boston is featured in physical literature, online blogs and in short 

promotional films promoting the 2020 offer of the Pilgrim destinations. 

These include travel articles in the American ‘Christian Post’ and coverage 

in the influential travel blog ‘London Unattached’. Boston has been 

included in travel itineraries of a number of national and international group 

travel operators including Kuoni travel and Reformation Tours. A 

promotional film of the local ‘Pilgrim Roots’ region, including Retford, 

Scrooby and Gainsborough, features Boston and helps share our offer as 

a heritage destination. 

 As a result of interest we have developed more bookable tour products. 

Whilst offering visit support, liaison and post visit enquiry and information 

services to the groups and individuals delivering these initiatives, amounting to 

£2K of ‘benefit in kind’ contributions, all of these works have been paid for on 

behalf of the main project and required no financial resourcing. 

    
1.4 Nationally, Plymouth have led the development of a bid to secure Arts Council 

England (ACE) funding to support artistic development of an ‘Illuminate’ event 
in their region that also incorporates resource and capacity to develop a 
national ‘moment’ at other Pilgrim destinations. If successful in its 
development this may bring additional resource and help reinforce our own 
‘Illuminate’ events that we have been successfully delivering alongside our 
Christmas events launches in November of each year. 
 
If successful this would bring additional resource to deliver a complimentary 
event alongside our own planned and resourced activity at no additional cost. 
 

1.5 Regionally, Bassetlaw as part of the Roots region was successful in the HLF 
supporting a bid for in the region of £600K around the Pilgrim story. The 
council had significant cash match and had, before any bid, employed a 
member of staff to work up their aspirations as well as having the specific 

Page 9



ambition of developing a permanent visitor experience allied to their town’s 
museum. Boston will benefit from the close working relationship with the 
‘Roots’ region through the provision of educational material and some of the 
engagement tools developed, though the project will not deliver any physical 
works within the borough. 
 
Outputs that are realised by this project and applicable to be shared with 
Boston will not incur any cost. 

 

 
2. Boston – Projects designed to incorporate the Pilgrim 2020 anniversary  

 
2.1 HLF ‘Experience Boston: Travel, Trade and Influence’ 

 
A bid has been submitted to build on the foundation of the HLF funded 
Explore and Discover project that delivered new mapping, pedestrian 
wayfinding improvements, trails and town guides, interpretation monoliths and 
importantly provided the design toolkit that now brands much of Boston. 
 
The project has been proposed to be delivered in two stages. The first 
prioritising activities and development of Pilgrim specific resources and 
interpretation ready for early 2020. The second is a continuing phase of 
engagement that develops our wider American, maritime histories and helps 
interpret and commemorate these connections for both our local and visiting 
audiences. 
 
In phase one interpretation monoliths would be developed at Pilgrim specific 
sites such as the Pilgrim memorial site, Boston Guildhall and Customs House 
Quay and in phase two other sites in the town and potentially its surrounds will 
be identified to best engage with users. 
 
The Pilgrim association can be seen to be critical in the ‘Why now’ part of the 
bid but the application has increased merit in that it looks beyond that single 
anniversary and towards our other heritage and 2030.  

 
So whilst Boston will have Pilgrim specific interventions and enhancements of 
the Memorial area through interpretation, engagement activity, other events 
such as Illuminate event and also have the themes potentially celebrated in 
Arts Council projects, the bid will not be focussed directly on this specific one 
date in time anniversary. 
 
The result of this application will be known in March and if successful the 
project will launch during April. Phase one is intended to be complete by 
December 2019 with installation of physical interpretation and Phase two and 
post project evaluation intended to be complete by February 2021. 
 
(It is of note that through discussion with the Environment Agency (E.A.) that 
they now wish to incorporate the same street furniture and our design toolkit to 
provide interpretation in the area adjacent to the new barrier site. 
Environmental or industrial themes may be able to be explored, this will add to 

Page 10



our existing and proposed schemes and help make interpretation through the 
town and surrounds more seamless as well as continuing to reinforce the 
place brand of Boston.)  
 
Boston Borough Council made a commitment of £10K match funding to 
support the project and through negotiation with Lincolnshire County Council 
we secured an additional £10K of match funding specific to the bid. The bid to 
the HLF asks for a contribution of £60K to deliver a £80K programme in total. 
Additional interpretation complimenting the scheme delivered by the 
Environment agency will be at no cost to the authority. 
 

 
2.2 Development of ‘Illuminate’  

 
Each year we have continued to work with the ACE funded Transported arts 
programme to progressively commission more ambitious and engaging arts 
activity in the Illuminate event. Illuminate is a light themed event that all 
destinations in the Pilgrim story can electively participate in and we have built 
this event into our annual planning of our Christmas launch event. The lantern 
parades, delivered in partnership with artists and schools, have become a key 
part of each year’s events and other elements such as contemporary choral 
works and aerial dance have brought added vitality. 
 
We are currently planning the next two years Illuminate artistic content with 
Transported and looking to bid to ACE to enable some larger scale 
commissioning to make more impact, particularly in 2020.  
 
Illuminate is scheduled to be delivered on the 21st November 2019 and in 
2020 the date for the participating destinations has been set for November 
26th. 
 
A bid to ACE will be developed and submitted in March to support the activity 
for 2019 with the results being known by late summer. A separate bid will be 
developed for 2020 which will be shaped to build on the Illuminate delivery in 
Boston to date. 
 
Monies to support the current development and delivery of Illuminate have 
been made available from the Controlling Migration fund and £10K match 
funding for the 2020 Illuminate event has been agreed by Boston Borough 
Council (BBC) that will be used in a bid for circa £100K to ACE. 

 
2.3 Pilgrim and American connections: Events 

 
We will use events to help reinforce the Pilgrim associations in 2019 and 
2020. We are building in, where possible and appropriate, either Pilgrim or 
American themes into the existing event programmes and also looking to 
develop specific events and short programmes of activities. 
 
The existing events programme is well developed and dynamic and like many 
destination partners we will promote events during 2019 and 2020 in the 

Page 11



Mayflower 400 programme of activities. They give a vibrant feel to the town 
during the anniversary year in particularly and events listed on the Mayflower 
400 website do not have to be Pilgrim themed for inclusion. We are trying to 
maximise opportunity for making these American links and will work with the 
existing events programme and celebrate these links wherever possible. 
 
This will include looking toward the larger events such as the 1940’s 
weekends or history event to represent American influences and Pilgrim 
connections as well as exploring the potential to use a ‘pop up’ style stall at 
some events to help share information and engage. We will commemorate the 
Pilgrim story in events by developing our wider American connections, 
incorporating contemporary American culture among the main themes and 
introduce the Pilgrims where appropriate to provide a more engaging 
experience.  
 
The Guildhall will have a more specific events programme in place that looks 
to keep Pilgrim and Boston’s American associations at the forefront during 
2020. We are at the point of finalising dates around existing activities, 
bookings and commitments on site as well as exploring working with partner 
sites to offer a more dynamic experience. Indicative dates for Guildhall events 
that have been identified for 2020 include 10-12 April, 28-31 August and 9-13 
September (dates are expressed as ranges though some may be single day 
events).  
 
The Guildhall is also re developing its internal exhibitions to incorporate either 
American themed content from its collections or content from the time of the 
Pilgrims and Cotton Congregation. We will have an event on site in late 
September that opens the Guildhall American Exhibition and main 
commemorative period of Pilgrim activity.  
 
September also benefits from an independently arranged conference that 
specifically explores Boston’s historic American connections and is to take 
place at Blackfriars Theatre with refreshments being taken at Boston Guildhall 
during the event.  
 
A specific Americana and Pilgrims event on September 12th and 13th 
2020,currently at the planning stage, is intended to commemorate the Pilgrim 
anniversary and the John Cotton story but with plans for it to reflect a diverse 
range of American influence to encourage wider inclusivity for the event and 
reinforce the links between Boston Lincolnshire, Boston Massachusetts and 
America. 
 
Guildhall exhibition development and programme of events will be delivered in 
house within existing budgets, and supported by agreed administrative costs 
and project expenses. The event in September 2020 will be funded by an 
agreed contribution of £5K with additional monies being sought to support. 
 
An indicative programme of Pilgrim specific events is appended (Appendix 2) 
 

Page 12



2.4 Structures on the Edge: ACE sculpture project, Havenside, near the Pilgrim 
memorial 
 
A project to develop a sculpture project looking to install a large scale 
contemporary installation was initiated during 2018. This is to be funded by 
LCC and BBC match funding a bid to ACE, with LCC being the lead applicant 
and manager of delivery, the project being part of the Structures on the Edge 
commissions along the Lincolnshire Coast. 
 
Artists briefs were developed and issued during spring and responses from 
national and internationally known artists were shortlisted and then interviews 
took place. Through this a favoured ‘in principle’ design, which would evolve 
and be developed, was chosen which reflected not just the Pilgrims in 
isolation but navigation, travel and much wider themes. This design was 
shared and endorsed by the CEX and Portfolio Holder as well as with Fishtoft 
Parish Council. 
 
Due to its location on and adjacent to the sea banks which will be being re-
profiled due to engineering requirements as part of the barrier project the 
project submission has not been able completed as the design and 
construction cannot be developed at this point in time. Thus an application to 
ACE has been unable to be completed. Meetings on site with the E.A. have 
indicated that a potential more suitable location seaward of the sea bank and 
further from the memorial site may be more appropriate. 
 
Whilst reflecting elements of the Pilgrim story the structure and the themes 
and stories it develops is considered as more widely encompassing but due to 
the physical constraints of the bank engineering if the bid is successful 
installation is likely to be completed post 2020 though we would like to see 
this progressed and installed as soon as possible afterwards. The proposal of 
the installation as part of the Sculptures on the Edge series of artworks in 
coastal locations makes it non dependent upon a direct relationship with the 
anniversary year and the brief and artist responses all look to create a legacy 
commemorating wider themes of exploration, maritime history and location. 
We are currently in discussions to see when we can progress works and 
develop and submit the bid. With works to the sea bank anticipated to be 
delivered by the end of 2019 it is hoped to progress the bid to ACE during 
April and May this year, once submitted a twelve week period is required for 
the decision making process. 
 
Lincolnshire County Council will be the lead applicant and project manager 
and are providing circa £22K of match funding, Boston Borough Council have 
committed £5K match funding and a bid to ACE is expected to be up to £90K.  
 

2.5 Boston Buoys: Sculpture Project 
 
Allied to the Structures on the Edge project a scheme proposing a set of 
artistic interventions to six large scale redundant maritime buoys was 
developed during spring 2018. Artist briefs were worked up and circulated and 
again a high level of response from nationally and internationally known artists 

Page 13



was received. Through short listing and subsequent interview three artists 
were selected to ‘curate’ the project, each having two buoys to work with. The 
design proposals were used to support an application to ACE with match 
funding made available from Boston Big Local (BBL), the E.A. and Boston 
Borough Council.  
 
The bid has been submitted on behalf of Transported through their 
accountable body, the University of Lincoln, Transported will manage the 
project with the close co operation of Boston Borough Council. 
 
The buoys are intended to be placed in key locations in and around the town 
centre and represent and reflect elements of the town’s historic and 
contemporary stories as well as presenting a ‘trail’ for people to be able to 
follow.  
 
Whilst not specific to the Pilgrims the programme design and commissioning 
has always been intended to maximise its impact from a 2020 unveiling. 
Adding to the cultural offer of the town and being and impactful intervention in 
the public realm during a time of heightened interest locally, nationally and 
internationally. 
 
The outcome of the bid will be known during April or May with the projects 
commencing straight afterwards. 

 
The Boston Buoys project was initially scoped to be 5 buoys in total being 
match funded by £14K by Boston Big Local (BBL) through a service level 
agreement with Boston in Bloom (BiB) Boston Borough Council had through 
existing budgets agreed to support with a contribution of £1K. During May and 
June of 2018 we took the opportunity to advocate investment in this arts 
project with the E.A. who are working on the barrier scheme to enable another 
buoy to be added to the scheme close to the barrier installation. In September 
of last year they confirmed that they would contribute an additional £14K to 
the scheme enabling all three selected artists to work on 2 buoys each. The 
bid to ACE is for in the region of £100K. 

 
2.6 Boston Railway Station: Community Rail Partnership 

 
A number of station enhancements and artist interventions are being planned, 
in close consultation with Boston Borough Council, at the rail station ahead of 
2020. An approach from the Poacher Line ‘Community Rail Partnership’ was 
made asking for advice in contacting groups or for information on local 
ambitions and initiatives for the arts and improvement of public realm areas. 
We have been able to work with the partnership and both share opportunities 
and current activity as well as introducing local stakeholders such as BBL, BiB 
and the Transported arts programme to help best align the direction of 
interventions and how they will compliment ongoing works. 
 
These include artist commissioning to improve the station ambience and 
welcome as well as increasing the provision of interpretation and information 
at the site with our design toolkit. Where appropriate themes will be adopted 

Page 14



that encourage engagement with our historic and visitor offer, including 
events, and consequently help our visitor economy and the communication of 
Boston’s offer as a visitor destination. It is of note that in current discussions 
with Boston Railway Station around programmes being developed with the 
Community Rail Partnership that there is significant interest in adding another 
Buoy to the scheme at that site. 
 
 
The Community Rail Partnership is working with others linked to the Pilgrim 
2020 anniversary and has arranged a stand at Kings Cross during May 2019 
to promote those destinations as places to visit by train, Boston will be one of 
the destination.  
 
In April 2020 we have been asked to join forces with the Poacher Line to 
provide more information specific to Boston and its American connections at 
Kings Cross Station for the day. This is part of the Community in the City 
initiative that looks to encourage travel by train to support rural train lines 
where they work with partners to maximise impact based usually on a specific 
opportunity with the 2020 anniversary being an ideal case. The event is high 
profile with a wide audience and has benefited from media and TV coverage 
in the past.   
 
The stations as a whole within the Community Rail Partnerships are looking to 
commission some resin Pilgrims to be present at each station during 2020, to 
link them as arrival sites following the story. 
 
 

3. Conclusion 
 

3.1 The projects, activities & events programme will enable Boston to usefully 
contribute to other existing and proposed schemes based around the heritage 
and historic offer of Boston, improving the town as a destination and place to 
live, work and culturally engage with. These include the Townscape Heritage 
Initiative, public realm interventions and improvements in the presentation of 
the streetscene all of which influence the experience of Boston and underpin 
its ability to attract interest and investment. 
 

3.2 The list of activity is not exhaustive and as we approach 2020 it is likely that it 
will be possible to incorporate more activity and help stakeholders and 
partners develop plans to deliver additional programmes and events. 
 

3.3 The recommendations of this report are therefore that: 
 

 The Environment & Performance Committee notes the progress of the 
various projects as detailed within the report 

  

Page 15



 

 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Not applicable 
 

 

 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
There are no legal implications specific to this report. 
 

 

 
ANY OTHER IMPLICATIONS 
 
None specific to this report. 
 

 

 
APPENDICES 
Appendix 1 Summary of funding and costs 
Appendix 2 Pilgrim Events Update 
Appendix 3 Externally funded projects – indicative timescales and milestones 
 

 

 
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
No background papers as defined in Section 100D of the Local Government Act 1972 
were used in the production of this report.  
 

 

 
CHRONOLOGICAL HISTORY OF THIS REPORT 
 
A report on this item has previously considered by this committee on 10 January 
2018. 
 
 

 

Page 16



Appendix 1 - Summary Table of Projects and Costs  
 
Detailed below is the Summary Table of agreed Projects and Costs as at January 
2019 
 
Project Funding Bodies Project 

Cost 
Secured BBC 

benefit 
in Kind 

Further 
Staffing 

BBC cash 
contribution 

International 
and national 
promotion of 
destinations  
 

Discover England 
Fund 

£500K 
 

Yes Yes N/A N/A 

Haven 
Commissions 
Project 
 

ACE / LCC / BBC £130K 
approx 

No Yes Yes £5K  
 

Boston Buoys 
project 

ACE/BBL/BiB/E.A./BBC £130K  No Yes Yes £1K 

Experience 
Boston 
incorporating 
Pilgrims 2020 

HLF / BBC/LCC £80K  No Yes Yes £10K 
 
 

Illuminate 
Festivals 2019 
to 2020 

ACE/BBC £110K  No Yes Yes £10K 
 
 

Alternative 
Pilgrim Event 
and Activities 

ACE/HLF/BBL 
potential 

£10K  No Yes Yes £5K 
 

Administrative 
Expenses 
(Annually £3K) 

BBC £9K 
(Over 3 
years) 

No N/A N/A £9K 
 

Staffing Costs 
for project 
Delivery  

BBC £7.5K 
(Over 3 
years) 

No N/A N/A £22.5K 
 
 

 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2 

PILGRIM AND AMERICAN EVENTS 2019 AND 2020 

Please note that these events do not include those in the main events programme 

which will incorporate Pilgrim and American themes where possible and appropriate 

and does not include activity which may be dependent upon the outcome of funding 

bids. They are also in addition to any Pilgrim themed afternoon teas or small talks. 

SEPTEMBER 7 2019:  

AMERICAN CONFERENCE ‘FROM STUMP TO STATUE’ 

VENUE BLACKFRIARS THEATRE & BOSTON GUILDHALL 

SEPTEMBER 28 2019: 

GUILDHALL EXHIBITION OPENING AND PILGRIM YEAR LAUNCH 

VENUE GUILDHALL 

NOVEMBER 21 2019: 

ILLUMINATE EVENT AND CHRISTMAS EVENT 

TOWN CENTRE AND GUILDHALL 

APRIL 10-12 2020  

EASTER PILGRIM & AMERICAN HISTORY ACTIVITIES 

VENUE GUILDHALL 

AUGUST 28-31 2020 

BANK HOLIDAY PILGRIM AND AMERICAN ACTIVITIES 

VENUE GUILDHALL 

SEPTEMBER 12-13 2020 

AMERICANA AND PILGRIM EVENT 

VENUE CENTRAL PARK AND GUILDHALL 

NOVEMBER 26 2020 

ILLUMINATE EVENT AND CHRISTMAS EVENT 

TOWN CENTRE AND GUILDHALL 

Page 19



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 3   EXTERNALLY FUNDED PILGRIM PROJECTS  INDICATIVE PROGRAMES AND MILESTONES 

 

PROJECT OUTCOME 
DATE 

PROJECT 
START  

MILESTONE MILESTONE MILESTONE MILESTONE COMPLETION 

Experience 
Boston 
HLF bid 

22nd March 
2019 

April 2019 
Project 
launch and 
begin 
consultation 

May 2019 
Specialist 
consultation 
on Pilgrim 
and 
American 
themes 

July 2019 Design 
and commission 
begins-phase 1 
interpretation 

December 
2019 install 
phase 1 
scheme and 
initiate phase 
2 

April 2020 
Design and 
commissioning 
begins- phase 
2 
interpretation 

October 2020 
installation 
phase 2- 
begin 
evaluation for 
completion 
Feb 2021 

Pilgrim 
memorial 
Site 
Structures 
on the Edge 

Not Known April 2019 
begin bid 
writing, 
informed by 
EA 
schedules 
and 
engineering 
requirements 

July 2019 
Create 
project 
schedule and 
submit bid 

October/November 
2019 
Bid outcome 
known 

December 
2019 
commence 
project 

  

Boston 
Buoys  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

April 2019 April 2019 
notify artists  

May 2019 
commence 
engagement 
and design 
process 

July 2019 initiate 
creative 
consultation 
activity and 
engagement 
sessions to evolve 
designs 

October 2019 
masterclasses, 
workshops 
and final 
design 
proposals 

December 
2019 Studio 
and specialist 
fabrications 

April 2020 
installation on 
site and 
secondary 
product 
launches of 
walks and 
trails. 

P
age 21



Illuminate 
2020 

Not known April 2019 
commence 
bid writing 
and scope 
arts input to 
2020 
Illuminate 
event 

May 2019 
submit bid to 
ACE 

August/September 
2019  
Bid outcome is 
known 

November 
2019 deliver 
this year’s 
Illuminate and 
evaluate. 

December 
2019 begin 
Illuminate 
project 
planning for 
2020 including 
planned 
workshops 
and 
consultation. 

November 
2020 
Illuminate is 
delivered and 
is the most 
engaging and 
ambitious of 
the 
programme to 
date. 

 

P
age 22



ENVIRONMENT AND PERFORMANCE WORK PROGRAMME 2018 – 2019 
MMeeeettiinnggss::      TTuueessddaayy  11883300  hhoouurrss..  

  

Chairman:   Councillor Judith Skinner 
  

Date: Report Presenter Cabinet 
5 June 2018 Crime and Disorder Annual Review / CCTV Statistics 17/18                    

Crime and Disorder Annual Review /    ASB Statistics 17/18               

CCTV Policy Annual Review 

Andrew Haw 
 

Ian Dunn  

27 June 2018 

 

17 July 2018 
 

           
         Markets Review  

 

Phil Perry 
5 Sept 2018 

 

4 September 2018 
           
         Update on Environmental Crime Enforcement Activity 
 

 

Matt Fisher 
 

3 Oct 2018 

 

8 November 2018 
 

 

Statement Of Community Consultation – Boston Alternative Energy 
Facility (Consultation) 
Waste Management Strategy for Lincolnshire          

 

  

Michelle Sacks 
 

Chris Allen 
 

 

28 Nov 2018 

 

8 January 2019 
 

 

         Economic Development 
 

Clive Gibbons 
 

9 Jan 2019 

 

5 March 2019 

          

Update on Pilgrim 20 / 20 
  

  

P Perry 
 

 

 
 

It is noted that the April meeting for 2019 has been cancelled with the permission of the Chairman. 
 
2019 / 2020:  (Note:  schedule of meetings subject to agreement at AGM May 2019) 
 

 

18 June 2019 
 

 

Report on suggestions outstanding from previous year (see over) 
TBC:    Policy for ‘A’ Boards    /   BAEF 

 

Lead Officer 
 

 
 

 

30 July 2019 
 

   

 

24 September 2019 
 

 

Pilgrims 20/20 update 
  

 

See over for alternative Scrutiny working along with potential items for reporting / task and finish reviews and member working groups for 2019 / 2020 
 

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 2



 

 

Task and Finish Group Review(s):       
None convened at time of issuing of agenda. 
 

Member Working Group(s):  
None convened at time of issuing of agenda. 
 
 

Inquiry Day:  None scheduled. 
   

Member Briefing:   SELLP.    6pm -   6 March 2019 

  

 
2019 / 2020 – WORK PROGRAMME:      (possible items for: direct full reporting / task and finish group reviews / member working groups. 
 
The following items were tabled by the 2018/2019 committee and due to the depth of potential scrutiny involved in each, it was agreed to defer them for 
the new committee 2019/2020.   Simple reporting on these items will be provided at the June meeting of the new committee, to allow them to consider the 
suggestions made and agree or not if they wish to proceed: 
 
1. Environmental Building and Construction: 
      Purpose:   To understand how effective the Council is in driving and promoting development which is both environmentally friendly and sustainable for 

both domestic and commercial buildings.  How effective is national policy and the legislative framework at supporting the Council.  Does 
the Council drive innovation within the construction sector?   Initially what measures are in place to monitor local and national construction 
companies – how does Boston benchmark with others.  What power does to the Council have to require and hold developers to account to 
be as eco. friendly as possible?.   How active are the regular developers within the borough in providing sustainable development? 

  

The level of scrutiny involved in this item could lead itself to a Task and Finish Group Review due to the amount of information gathering required both in-house and   
Externally.   It is however for the committee to determine should it wish to proceed with Scrutinising this subject matter. 

 
2. Environmental Procurement: 
       Purpose:   To understand how effective the Council is with environmentally friendly and sustainable purchasing and procurement arrangements and to   
                        see how effective the Council is at supporting local business in helping to reduce its carbon footprint. 
 

The level of scrutiny involved in this item could lead itself to a short term member working group working directly in-house with the respective officers and then reporting 
back to committee.  It is however for the committee to determine should it wish to proceed with Scrutinising this subject matter. 
 
 
 
 

Phase 1:     
First meeting of the new municipal year:   

  
Both items to have reports outlining the above suggestions from the previous year’s committee with recommendations seeking further action or not on  
these items, and if further action, then how to proceed. 

P
age 24


	Agenda
	B. MINUTES
	1 THE PILGRIMS 2020 AND ALLIED OPPORTUNITIES (UPDATE)
	Appendix 1 - Summary of funding and costs
	Appendix 2 - Pilgrim events update
	Appendix 3 - Externally funded projects - indicative programmes and milestones

	2 WORK PROGRAMME

